

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Forty-ninth Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

FIFTEENTH DAY

Bismarck, January 28, 1985

The House convened at 1:00 p.m., with Speaker R. Hausauer presiding.

The prayer was offered by Rev. Zack D. Gill, First United Methodist Church, Mandan, North Dakota.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called and all Representatives were present, except Representatives Gullickson, Lipsiea, and Shaw.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

REQUEST

REP. STRINDEN REQUESTED that the records show that Rep. Lipsiea is hospitalized in Fargo and Rep. Shaw is absent due to illness, which request was granted.

REVISION AND CORRECTION OF THE JOURNAL

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Revision and Correction of the Journal has carefully examined the Journal of the Fourteenth Day and finds the same to be correct.

REP. KENT, Chairman

REP. STOFFERAHN MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

REP. HOFFNER: Mr. Speaker: I rise on a point of personal privilege and request that my remarks be printed in the Journal, which request was granted.

Mr. Speaker, members of the Assembly: I would like to take this opportunity to thank the North Dakota House of Representatives for sending Representative Dick Kloubec, Representative Pete Lipsiea, and myself, Representative Serenus Hoffner, to Washington D.C., one week ago to attend the 50th Presidential Inauguration Ceremonies. It was truly an educational experience which we all appreciated. While it was the coldest inauguration on record, we all returned with many warm memories. Thank you for allowing us to be your delegation.

RECOGNITION

THE SPEAKER ANNOUNCED that a former Representative was in the chambers, and requested that the House recognize former

Representative Bob Hartl, and Representative Hartl was thereupon introduced to the House.

REPORT OF PROCEDURAL COMMITTEE

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Enrollment and Engrossment respectfully report that they have examined the following bill and find the same correctly enrolled:

HB 1193

REP. HEDSTROM, Chairman

REP. RIEHL MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

SIGNING OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

THE CHIEF CLERK ANNOUNCED that the Speaker signed the following:

HB 1193

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE
HOUSE CHAMBER

MADAM PRESIDENT: I have the honor to transmit herewith the following which the Speaker has signed and your signature is respectfully requested:

HB 1193

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk

REPORT OF PROCEDURAL COMMITTEE

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Enrollment and Engrossment respectfully report that they have examined the following bills and find the same correctly engrossed:

HB 1128, HB 1204, HB 1246, HB 1252, HB 1256

REP. HEDSTROM, Chairman

REP. HILL MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE
HOUSE CHAMBER

MADAM PRESIDENT: I have the honor to transmit herewith the following which the House has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on:

HB 1046

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE
SENATE CHAMBER

MR. SPEAKER: I have the honor to transmit herewith the following which the Senate has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on:

SB 2068, SB 2099, SB 2104, SB 2116, SB 2147, SB 2208,
SB 2216, SB 2221, SB 2246, SCR 4001, SCR 4006, SCR 4013
LEO LEIDHOLM, Secretary

SENATE CHAMBER

MR. SPEAKER: I have the honor to return herewith the following which the Senate has passed unchanged:

HCR 3033

LEO LEIDHOLM, Secretary

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

REP. NICHOLAS MOVED that the amendments to HB 1093 as recommended by the **Committee on Agriculture** as printed on page 402 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that HB 1093 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

HB 1093 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

REP. TIMM MOVED that the amendments to HB 1186 as recommended by the **Committee on Transportation** as printed on page 403 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that HB 1186 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

HB 1186 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

REP. TIMM MOVED that the amendments to HB 1227 as recommended by the **Committee on Transportation** as printed on page 403 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that HB 1227 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

HB 1227 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

REP. A. OLSON MOVED that the amendments to HB 1235 as recommended by the **Committee on Natural Resources** as printed on page 404 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that HB 1235 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

HB 1235 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

REP. NICHOLAS MOVED that the amendments to SB 2133 as recommended by the **Committee on Agriculture** as printed on page 404 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that SB 2133 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

SB 2133 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1236: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 57-15-14.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to special fund mill levies for the removal of asbestos from school buildings.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 100 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Hausauer, A.; Opedahl

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Kuchera; Lipsiea; Shaw

HB 1236 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1247: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 2 and 5 of section 11-10-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the salaries of county officers.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 90 YEAS, 13 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, R.; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olson, V.; Opedahl; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schneider; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Berg, G.; Brokaw; Gunsch; Kuchera; Melby; Murphy; Myrdal; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; O'Shea; Riley; Schmidt; Shide

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw

HB 1247 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1253: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 15-29-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the time for the annual meeting of school boards.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 103 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden;

Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Vander Vorst;
Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.;
Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw

HB 1253 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1260: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 11-10-15, 11-10-16, and 11-15-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to mileage expenses paid to county officials and employees.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 70 YEAS, 32 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Belter; Berg, R.; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers;
Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gertholz; Graba;
Halmrast; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hedstrom;
Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury;
Klundt; Knudson; Kretschmar; Lang; Larson; Laughlin;
Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Martin; Mertens;
Meyer; Moore; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban;
O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea;
Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard;
Riehl; Rydell; Sauter; Schneider; Shide; Smette;
Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Strinden; Thompson;
Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Watne; Wentz;
Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, W.

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Berg, G.; Brokaw;
Cleveland; Dorso; Gates; Goetz; Gunsch; Hamerlik;
Hausauer, A.; Kloubec; Koland; Kuchera; Lloyd;
Martinson; Melby; Murphy; Myrdal; Olson, A.; Payne;
Riley; Schindler; Schmidt; Shockman; Stofferahn; Timm;
Wald; Williams, C.; Winkelman; Wold;
Speaker Hausauer, R.

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw;
Skjerven

HB 1260 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1263: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 24-10-02 and 24-10-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to maintenance of cattle guards and cattle ways.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 101 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Conmy; Hamerlik

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw

HB 1263 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1264: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 36-04-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to livestock dealers and dealer's agents.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 103 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland;

Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw

HB 1264 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1005: A BILL for an Act making an appropriation for the distribution of funds for the replacement of personal property taxes revenue.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 103 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw

HB 1005 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1026: A BILL for an Act making an appropriation for the distribution of state general fund revenue to local political subdivisions of the state of North Dakota.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 103 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjervan; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw

HB 1026 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1040: A BILL for an Act to transfer moneys from the accumulated and undivided profits of the Bank of North Dakota to the general fund of the state of North Dakota.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 99 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Klundt; Starke

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Goetz; Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw; Unhjem

HB 1040 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1128: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 6 of section 54-52-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to optional death benefit payment under the public employees retirement system.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 101 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice;

Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Goetz; Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw; Unhjem

HB 1128 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1179: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 61-04-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to inspection of water works.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 2 YEAS, 101 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Kretschmar; Kuchera

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw

HB 1179 was declared lost.

MOTION

REP. KRETSCHMAR MOVED that the House waive the reading of the title to HB 1194, which motion prevailed.

HB 1194: A BILL for an Act to provide for the administrative enforcement of child support actions; to create and enact three new sections to chapter 14-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to child support liens on real and personal property and out-of-state filing of wage withholding orders; to amend and reenact sections 14-09-09.1, 14-17-06 and subsection 3 of section 57-38.3-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to wage withholding in child support matters, statute of limitations in paternity actions, and setoff of income tax refund; to repeal section 14-09-09.4 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to revocation of wage assignments; to direct a legislative council study; to make an appropriation; and to provide an effective date.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 11 YEAS, 92 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Dotzenrod; Hedstrom; Kingsbury; Laughlin; Martinson; Melby; O'Connell; Retzer; Unhjelm; Williams, A.; Williams, C.

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw

HB 1194 was declared lost.

HB 1204: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 57-02-08.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to state payment for the homestead credit for special assessments and the lien for payment of the homestead credit for special assessments.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 61 YEAS, 42 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, R.; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; Dorso; Eckroth; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Gunsch; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hughes; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Lindgren; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Payne; Retzer; Rice; Riley; Rydell; Schindler; Schmidt; Shide; Smette; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wald; Wentz; Whalen; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Berg, G.; Brokaw; DeMers; Dotzenrod; Enget; Frey; Graba; Halmrast; Hanson, L.; Hill; Hoffner; Keller; Kelly; Klundt; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd; Mertens; Meyer; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Opedahl; O'Shea; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Richard; Riehl; Sauter; Schneider; Shockman; Skjerven; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Ulmer; Watne; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw

HB 1204 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

REP. KRETSCHMAR MOVED that the House waive the reading of the title to HB 1212, which motion prevailed.

HB 1212: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 61-04.1-01, 61-04.1-02, 61-04.1-03, 61-04.1-04, 61-04.1-06, 61-04.1-08, 61-04.1-09, 61-04.1-11, 61-04.1-12, 61-04.1-13, 61-04.1-14, 61-04.1-16, 61-04.1-20, 61-04.1-21, 61-04.1-22, 61-04.1-23, 61-04.1-24, 61-04.1-25, 61-04.1-26, 61-04.1-27, 61-04.1-28, 61-04.1-29, 61-04.1-30, 61-04.1-31, 61-04.1-32, 61-04.1-33, 61-04.1-34, 61-04.1-35, 61-04.1-36, 61-04.1-37, 61-04.1-38, 61-04.1-39, and 61-04.1-41 of the North Dakota

Century Code, relating to changing references to "weather modification" to "atmospheric resources management".

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 19 YEAS, 84 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, R.; Cleveland; Enget; Gates; Halmrast; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kuchera; Larson; Lindgren; Martin; Meyer; Nowatzki; Riehl; Starke; Strinden; Tollefson; Whalen

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Conny; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Frey; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Kretschmar; Lang; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Stofferahn; Thompson; Timm; Ulmer; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw

HB 1212 was declared lost.

MOTIONS

REP. STRINDEN MOVED that the House reconsider its action whereby HB 1062 failed to pass, which motion prevailed on a verification vote.

REP. STRINDEN MOVED that HB 1062 be rereferred to the Committee on Appropriations, which motion prevailed.

THE SPEAKER ANNOUNCED that HB 1062 was referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1217: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 15-40.2-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to school district tuition payments.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 63 YEAS, 39 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Brokaw; Dalrymple; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gerntholz; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hedstrom; Hill; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Klundt; Knudson; Kretschmar; Lang; Laughlin; Linderman; Lloyd; Martin; Melby; Meyer; Murphy; Myrdal; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Richard; Riehl; Schindler; Schmidt; Shide; Shockman; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Thompson; Timm; Vander Vorst; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Berg, R.; Cleveland; Conmy; DeMers; Dorso; Gates; Goetz; Graba; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hausauer, A.; Hoffner; Hughes; Kelly; Kloubec; Koland; Kuchera; Larson; Lautenschlager; Lindgren; Martinson; Moore; Nalewaja; Oban; Payne; Rice; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schneider; Skjerven; Strinden; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Wald; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Mertens; Shaw

HB 1217 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

REP. O. HANSON MOVED that the vote by which HB 1217 passed be reconsidered and the motion to reconsider be laid on the table, which motion failed on a verification vote.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1246: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 12-60-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the furnishing of criminal investigation information to private investigators.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 99 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers;

Dorso; Dotzenrod; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Kuchera; Richard; Williams, A.

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Eckroth; Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw

HB 1246 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

REP. KRETSCHMAR MOVED that the House waive the reading of the title to HB 1252, which motion prevailed.

HB 1252: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 37-17.1-01, 37-17.1-02, 37-17.1-03, 37-17.1-04, 37-17.1-05, 37-17.1-06, 37-17.1-07, 37-17.1-09, 37-17.1-10, 37-17.1-11, 37-17.1-12, 37-17.1-13, 37-17.1-14, 37-17.1-15, 37-17.1-16, 37-17.1-17, 37-17.1-18, 37-17.1-19, 37-17.1-20, 37-17.1-21, and 37-17.1-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to disasters or emergencies; and to repeal section 37-17.1-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to disasters or emergencies.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 102 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland;

Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Shaw; Stofferahn

HB 1252 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1256: A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new subsections to section 57-02-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, providing exemptions from property taxes for new single family residential property and condominiums and townhouses which meet certain qualifications; and to provide an effective date and an expiration date.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 61 YEAS, 41 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Erey; Gates; Gerntholz; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hughes; Keller; Kent; Kloubec; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Lindgren; Martinson; Mertens; Moore; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; O'Shea; Payne; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Riley; Rydell; Schmidt; Shide; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold

NAYS: Brokaw; DeMers; Enget; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hoffner; Kelly; Kingsbury; Klundt; Kuchera; Lang; Linderman; Lloyd; Melby; Meyer; Murphy; Myrdal; Oban; O'Connell; Opedahl; Pederson, R.; Richard; Riehl; Sauter; Schindler; Schneider; Shockman; Skjerven;

Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn;
Strinden; Ulmer; Wald; Watne; Williams, A.;
Speaker Hausauer, R.

ABSENT AND NCT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Martin; Shaw

HB 1256 passed and the title was agreed to.

APPOINTMENT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

THE SPEAKER ANNOUNCED the following appointment to a Conference Committee on SCR 4029:

Reps. Martinson, Melby, Opedahl

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE HOUSE CHAMBER

MADAM PRESIDENT: I have the honor to inform you that the Speaker has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the Senate on:

SCR 4029: Reps. Martinson, Melby, Opedahl

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk

MOTIONS

REP. STRINDEN MOVED that the absent members be excused, which motion prevailed.

REP. STRINDEN MOVED that the House be on the Fifth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Fifth order, the House be on the Ninth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Ninth order, the House be on the Thirteenth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Thirteenth order, the House stand adjourned until 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, January 29, 1985, which motion prevailed.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred HB 1067 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 17, immediately after the word "organization" insert the words "that was in existence on December 31, 1984, and that is"

On page 1, line 21, immediately after the numerals "501(c)(3)" insert the words ", or is a domestic fraternal organization under section 501(c)(10)"

On page 1, line 25, delete the numerals ", (2), (3), or (4)" and insert in lieu thereof the following: "or (3)"

- On page 2, line 31, delete the words "on the land or shall"
- On page 2, line 32, delete the words "allow hunting on the land by the general public" and insert in lieu thereof the words ", or if any parcel of the land is open to hunting, it must be open to hunting by the general public"
- On page 3, line 15, overstrike the word "grandchild" and insert immediately thereafter the words "grandson, granddaughter"
- On page 3, line 22, immediately after the word "kinship" insert the words "or affinity"
- On page 3, line 26, immediately after the word "kinship" insert the words "or affinity"
- On page 6, delete lines 29 and 30, and insert in lieu thereof the following language:

"c. If any parcel of the land is open to hunting, it must be open to hunting by the general public.

3. Before any farmland or ranchland can be purchased by any nonprofit organization for the purpose of conserving natural areas and habitats for biota, the governor must approve the proposed acquisition. A nonprofit organization that desires to purchase farmland or ranchland for the purpose of conserving natural areas and habitats for biota shall first submit a proposed acquisition plan to an advisory committee consisting of the director of the parks and recreation department, the state engineer, the agriculture commissioner, the state forester, the game and fish commissioner, and the manager of the Garrison Diversion Conservancy District, for acquisition plans containing lands within the Garrison Diversion Conservancy District, or their designees. The advisory committee shall review the proposed acquisition plan and shall make recommendations to the governor within thirty days after receipt of the proposed acquisition plan. The governor shall approve or disapprove any proposed acquisition plan, or any part thereof, within thirty days after receipt of the recommendations from the advisory committee."

- On page 6, line 31, delete the numeral "3" and insert in lieu thereof the numeral "4"
- On page 7, line 4, delete the word "five" and insert in lieu thereof the word "ten"

On page 7, line 5, immediately after the word "title" insert the following: ", unless fee title is held solely as security for payment of the purchase price, or unless fee title does not carry with it the right to immediate possession of the property""

And renumber the lines and pages accordingly

REP. CONMY, Chairman

HB 1067 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Natural Resources to which was referred HB 1071 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 13, after the period insert the following new sentence: "The court may not suspend the defendant's privileges for a noncriminal violation if the defendant has not been convicted for a violation of this title in the last three years."

On page 1, line 14, after the word "must" insert the word "successfully", and after the second word "the", insert the words "hunter education"

On page 1, line 15, after the numerals "20.1-03-01.1" insert the words ", as prescribed by the proper state or provincial natural resources or wildlife management agency,"

On page 2, line 1, after the numerals "20.1-03-01.1" insert the words "and as prescribed by the proper state or provincial natural resources or wildlife management agency"

On page 2, line 3, immediately after the underscored period insert the words "The person shall file proof of that completion with the court."

And renumber the lines and pages accordingly

REP. A. OLSON, Chairman

HB 1071 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Finance and Taxation to which was referred HB 1081 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 16 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 1, immediately after the comma insert the numerals "57-55-02,"

- On page 1, line 2, immediately after the numerals "57-55-04," insert the numerals "57-55-05," immediately after the numerals "57-55-06," insert the words and numerals "57-55-07, subsection 1 of section 57-55-10," and delete the numerals "57-55-12" and insert in lieu thereof the words "subsection 2 of section 57-55-11"
- On page 1, line 4, delete the words "decals; and to repeal section 57-55-02 of the North Dakota"
- On page 1, delete line 5
- On page 1, line 6, delete the word "decals" and insert in lieu thereof the word "permits"
- On page 1, line 13, overstrike the word "decal" and insert immediately thereafter the word "permit"
- On page 1, line 17, remove the overstrike over the words "~~Upon payment of the tax to the county treasurer, a~~"
- On page 1, line 18, remove the overstrike over the words "~~mobile home tax~~", immediately after the overstruck word "~~decal~~" insert the word "permit", and remove the overstrike over the words "~~shall be issued to the owner of the mobile~~"
- On page 1, line 19, remove the overstrike over the word "~~home~~" and delete the words "The owner shall include with the application a promise to pay"
- On page 1, delete lines 20 and 21
- On page 1, line 22, delete the words "issue a mobile home tax decal to the owner of the mobile home."
- On page 1, line 23, overstrike the word "decal" and immediately after the overstruck word "be" insert the word "permit"
- On page 1, after line 25, insert the following new section:

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 57-55-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

57-55-02. Application for taxing - Form - Contents. No mobile home tax ~~decal~~ permit shall be issued unless the owner files an application with the director of tax equalization and pays the tax and any penalties in full to the county treasurer. Application shall be made on forms prescribed by the state tax commissioner, furnished by the county director of tax equalization, and shall contain the necessary information to carry out the provisions of this chapter."

On page 2, line 1, delete the words "Lien on mobile"

On page 2, line 2, delete the word "home -"

On page 2, line 3, remove the overstrike over the word "~~The~~", delete the words "A property" and "on mobile homes is", and remove the overstrike over the words "~~in this~~"

On page 2, line 4, remove the overstrike over the words "~~chapter shall become~~" and delete the words "and is"

On page 2, line 5, remove the overstrike

On page 2, line 6, remove the overstrike over the words "purchased or first moved into this state" and delete the words "first of the year"

On page 2, line 7, delete the words "following the year for which the taxes were levied"

On page 3, delete lines 7 through 10 and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"3. Sections 51-07-11 and 57-22-18 do not apply to the tax levied under this chapter."

On page 3, line 23, remove the overstrike over the comma

On page 3, line 24, remove the overstrike over the words "~~and a tax~~", immediately after the overstruck word "~~deca~~" insert the word "permit", remove the overstrike over the words "~~has not been previously issued~~", immediately after the overstruck word "~~on~~" insert the word "for", and remove the overstrike over the words "~~such mobile home~~"

On page 3, line 25, remove the overstrike over the words "~~in this state for such year~~"

On page 3, after line 32, insert the following new section:

"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 57-55-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

57-55-05. Taxes in lieu of other property taxes. The taxes provided for in this chapter shall be in lieu of all property taxes upon such mobile homes for the calendar year for which the tax ~~deca~~ permit is valid. However, such taxes shall in no way be construed as exempting any mobile home owner from the requirements of registering such mobile home with the registrar of motor vehicles or securing license plates entitling such mobile home to be hauled upon the state's highways pursuant to section 39-18-03."

On page 4, line 1, overstrike the word "decals" and insert immediately thereafter the word "permits", overstrike the word "decal", and immediately after the overstruck word "~~shall~~" insert the word "permit"

On page 4, line 2, overstrike the words "decal type and"

On page 4, line 4, overstrike the first word "decals" and insert immediately thereafter the word "permits" and overstrike the second word "decals"

On page 4, line 5, immediately after the overstruck word "~~shall~~" insert the word "permits"

On page 4, after line 7, insert the following new sections:

"SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 57-55-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

57-55-07. Failure to make application or to display ~~decal~~ apply for permit - Illegal use of ~~decal~~ permit - Penalty. Any person who fails to make application pursuant to the provisions of this chapter, or who shall use or allow to be used a tax ~~decal~~ permit of any mobile home taxed pursuant to the provisions of this chapter for any purpose other than the purpose for which it was issued, ~~or who fails to attach such decal pursuant to the provisions of this chapter, shall~~ be is guilty of a class B misdemeanor.

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-55-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

1. A mobile home described in this subsection to the extent herein limited is exempt from taxation under this chapter; provided, that the mobile home shall have displayed on it a tax ~~decal~~ permit as provided in section 57-55-06:
 - a. If it is owned and used as living quarters of a military person on active military duty in this state who is a resident of another state.
 - b. If it is owned and occupied by a welfare recipient, provided the mobile home is not permanently attached to the land and classified as real property. For the purposes of this subdivision, "welfare recipient" means any person who is certified to the county director of tax equalization by the county social service board as receiving

the major portion of income from any state or federal public assistance program.

- c. If it is owned and used as living quarters by a disabled veteran or unremarried surviving spouse who meets the requirements of subsection 20 of section 57-02-08.
- d. If it is owned and used as the living quarters for a blind person who meets the requirements of subsection 22 of section 57-02-08.
- e. If it is owned and used by a person who uses it as living quarters and who qualifies for the homestead credit provided in section 57-02-08.1, and the mobile home shall be regarded for the purposes of this exemption as the homestead of the person claiming the exemption.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 57-55-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

- 2. Before a mobile home is moved from its existing location, the owner must have a current year's mobile home ~~decal displayed thereon or must display on the mobile home during transport permit~~ and a tax release statement obtained from the county director of tax equalization indicating that all taxes, penalties, and interest levied against the mobile home have been paid. A violation of this provision shall constitute an infraction, but the minimum penalty shall be one hundred dollars."

On page 4, delete lines 8 through 24

And renumber the lines, sections, and pages accordingly
 REP. A. HAUSAUER, Chairman

HB 1081 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Transportation to which was referred HB 1101 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 4, delete the first word "and"

- On page 1, line 7, after the word "devices" insert the words " and to declare an emergency"
- On page 1, line 18, remove the overstrike over the word "ex" and delete the words "or section 2"
- On page 1, line 19, delete the words "of this Act,"
- On page 1, underscore lines 23 through 28
- On page 1, line 28, after the word "shall" insert the words "make every reasonable attempt to notify the public and, conditions permitting,"
- On page 2, underscore line 1
- On page 2, underscore the words "motorists of the closing." and delete the words "A person may not operate a motor vehicle" and insert in lieu thereof the following sentence: "Each operator of a motor vehicle shall obey the traffic control device."
- On page 2, delete line 3 and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"SECTION 3. EMERGENCY. This Act is hereby declared to be an emergency measure and is in effect from and after its passage and approval."

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. TIMM, Chairman

HB 1101 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred HB 1148 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 1 NAY, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. KLOUBEC, Chairman

HB 1148 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred HB 1301 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 9 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. KLOUBEC, Chairman

HB 1301 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Finance and Taxation to which was referred HCR 3025 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 16 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. A. HAUSAUER, Chairman

HCR 3025 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

Reps. Strinden, A. Olson, Myrdal and Sen. Vosper introduced:

HB 1522: A BILL for an Act to provide for the revocation of the route permit and certificate of corridor compatibility issued for the MANDAN power project; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

Reps. Strinden, A. Olson, Myrdal introduced:

HB 1523: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 49-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to legislative approval of certain transmission facilities originating outside this state.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

Reps. Lindgren, Larson, Dalrymple and Sens. Lodoen, Nelson introduced:

HB 1524: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 57-39.2-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to exemption from the sales tax of receipts from sales of tickets or admissions to museums, historical sites, or other attractions operated by county historical societies or their affiliates.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Finance and Taxation.

Reps. Nowatzki, Rice, Thompson and Sens. Streibel, Heigaard, Wenstrom introduced:

HB 1525: A BILL for an Act making an appropriation for defraying the expense of the purchase of certain lands by the Carrington experiment station, the Hettinger experiment station, the Langdon experiment station, and the Williston experiment station.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

Reps. Kelly, Kuchera, Wentz and Sens. Lips, Stenehjem introduced:

HB 1526: A BILL for an Act making an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the educational broadcasting council.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

Rep. Timm and Sen. Reiten introduced:

HB 1527: A BILL for an Act to provide for township tax revenue expenditures within recreation service districts.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Finance and Taxation**.

Reps. Timm, Koland introduced:

HB 1528: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 26-41-03 or in the alternative subsection 2 of section 26.1-41-01 as created by Senate Bill No. 2078 as approved by the forty-ninth legislative assembly, section 26-41-06 or in the alternative section 26.1-41-04 as created by Senate Bill No. 2078 as approved by the forty-ninth legislative assembly, sections 39-16-05, 39-16.1-02, 39-16.1-05, and subdivision b of subsection 2 of section 39-16.1-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to required level of insurance against liability for damages arising from the operation of motor vehicles, and to levels of no-fault insurance coverage.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Transportation**.

Rep. Thompson introduced:

HB 1529: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 19-13.1-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to labeling of commercial feed.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture**.

Reps. R. Hausauer, Haugland, C. Williams introduced:

HB 1530: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for the construction of an agricultural mechanics building at the state school of science.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Appropriations**.

Reps. Dorso, DeMers introduced:

HB 1531: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 43-20-03 and 43-20-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the supervision over and responsibilities of dental hygienists.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs**.

Reps. Rydell, Martinson introduced:

HB 1532: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 20.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to an application fee for licenses to hunt elk, moose, and bighorn sheep; and to amend and reenact section 20.1-02-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the use of elk, moose, and bighorn sheep application fees by the game and fish department.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources**.

Reps. Stofferahn, Myrdal, Thompson and Sens. Vosper, Krauter, Maixner introduced:

HB 1533: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 49-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the demonstration of need for an energy conversion or transmission facility; and to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 49-22-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to information required for an application for a certificate of site compatibility or corridor compatibility for an energy conversion or transmission facility.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

Reps. Laughlin, Kent, D. Olsen and Sens. Vosper, Tweten introduced:

HB 1534: A BILL for an Act to establish an edible bean indemnity fund.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

Rep. Unhjem introduced:

HB 1535: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 43-33-04, subsection 4 of section 43-33-07, and subdivision g of subsection 2 of section 43-33-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the licensure of hearing aid dealers.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs.

Rep. Unhjem introduced:

HB 1536: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 43-20 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to notice for address changes of dental hygienists; and to amend and reenact sections 43-20-06, 43-20-07, 43-20-10, and 43-20-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to fees, reciprocity, board member compensation, and dental auxiliary supervision.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs.

Rep. Unhjem introduced:

HB 1537: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 5 of section 43-28-06, and sections 43-28-11, 43-28-12, 43-28-12.1, 43-28-14, 43-28-16, 43-28-17, 43-28-20, 43-28-21, and 43-28-23 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to powers of the state board of dental examiners, and to applications, examinations, fees, admissions, disciplinary actions, and costs.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs.

Rep. Linderman introduced:

HB 1538: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 19-18-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to economic poisons; and to declare an emergency.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor.**

Rep. Gates introduced:

HB 1539: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 12.1-23-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to defrauding secured creditors and theft of secured property.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor.**

Rep. Kloubec introduced:

HB 1540: A BILL for an Act to provide for the compilation of regulatory information by the workmen's compensation bureau and the dissemination of that information to persons desiring to do business in this state.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor.**

Reps. Richard, Martin, R. Anderson introduced:

HB 1541: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 15 of section 57-02-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the exemption of farm structures from taxation; and to provide an effective date.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Finance and Taxation.**

Reps. Retzer, D. Olsen introduced:

HB 1542: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 25-16-01, 25-16-02, 25-16-03, 25-16-03.1, 25-16-04, 25-16-06, 25-16-07, 25-16-08, 25-16-09, 25-16-10, and 25-16-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the licensure, ownership, operation, and the confidentiality of records of treatment and care centers for developmentally disabled persons.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs.**

Rep. Hughes introduced:

HB 1543: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 57-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead credit for payment of special assessments by cities or counties; and to provide an effective date.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Finance and Taxation.**

Rep. Hughes introduced:

HB 1544: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 38-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, to establish a fund for providing oil and gas reservoir data compiled by the industrial commission to state, federal,

and county departments and agencies, and members of the general public; and to provide an appropriation.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Political Subdivisions**.

Reps. Rydell, Oban, Hill and Sen. Stenehjem introduced:

HB 1545: A BILL for an Act to create a new section to the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the development of a new program for chemical abuse problems in North Dakota schools.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Education**.

Reps. D. Olsen, Hill, Hoffner, Haugland, Nalewaja introduced:

HB 1546: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 50-25.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to department of human services caseload standards and reimbursement to counties.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs**.

Reps. Richard, Martin introduced:

HB 1547: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 10-06-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to disposal of agricultural land and mineral interests by corporations.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture**.

Reps. Ulmer, Skjerven, Hughes introduced:

HB 1548: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 21-03-07 and subsection 1 of section 57-15-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the voter approval requirements for the issuance of general obligation bonds and the use of school building funds.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Finance and Taxation**.

Reps. Knudson, Schindler introduced:

HB 1549: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 15-40.1-07, 15-40.1-08, and 15-40.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the method of determining enrollment for foundation aid payments to school districts.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Education**.

Rep. Conmy introduced:

HB 1550: A BILL for an Act to create and enact three new sections to chapter 50-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to training requirements for foster care for children; and to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 50-11-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to terms of licensure for homes or institutions receiving children for foster care.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs**.

Rep. Strinden introduced:

HB 1551: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 2 of chapter 583 of the 1983 Session Laws of North Dakota, relating to the membership of the North Dakota centennial commission.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

Reps. Strinden, Mertens introduced:

HB 1552: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 57-62-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to recommendations of the director of the energy development impact office to the legislative assembly regarding appropriations for grants to coal or oil and gas development impacted political subdivisions; to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 57-62-02, sections 57-62-04, 57-62-05, and 57-62-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the coal and oil and gas development impact aid program; and to provide an effective date.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

Reps. Strinden, Unhjem introduced:

HB 1553: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-59 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to establishment of preschool special education projects; and to amend and reenact section 15-40.1-08, subsection 1 of section 15-59-01, section 15-59-04, subsection 3 of section 25-01.2-01, sections 25-01.2-02, 25-01.2-17, and subsection 1 of section 57-15-14.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to special education of exceptional children, rights of the developmentally disabled, and preschool special education projects.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Rep. Hedstrom introduced:

HB 1554: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subdivisions c, d, and e of subsection 4 of section 23-06-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to payments by county social service boards for burial of persons who died without survivors and without a sufficient estate to pay for burial.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs.

Reps. Riley, Moore introduced:

HB 1555: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 23-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the authority of counties concerning endangered gravesites.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Political Subdivisions.

Reps. Rice, R. Berg, Opedahl and Sens. Freborg, Wenstrom, Lodoen introduced:

HB 1556: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 20.1-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the titling of motorboats; and to amend and reenact section 39-05-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to motor vehicles requiring titling.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources.**

Reps. Rice, Shaw, Opedahl, Lautenschlager introduced:

HB 1557: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 39-05-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to entry of name of purchaser on motor vehicle title documents; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Transportation.**

Reps. J. Peterson, Kuchera, Kelly, R. Hausauer, Unhjem introduced:

HB 1558: A BILL for an Act to establish the industrial commission as the North Dakota building authority and to set out its powers and duties; to provide for a conditional transfer of funds to a state building authority fund; to provide authorization for construction and plant improvements for various buildings and facilities of state agencies, departments, and institutions; to provide an appropriation; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Appropriations.**

Reps. O. Solberg, Richard introduced:

HB 1559: A BILL for an Act making an appropriation to the state board of vocational education for Indian postsecondary institutional grants.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Appropriations.**

Reps. Kingsbury, A. Olson, Skjerven and Sens. Vosper, Stromme, Tallackson introduced:

HB 1560: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new chapter to title 35 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to agricultural commodity dealer liens; and to amend and reenact section 11-18-14 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to crop lien records.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture.**

Reps. Kingsbury, Nowatzki, A. Olson and Sens. Vosper, Tallackson, Tweten introduced:

HB 1561: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 4-09-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to membership of the state seed commission.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

Reps. Kingsbury, Kuchera introduced:

HB 1562: A BILL for an Act to create and enact six new sections to chapter 54-35 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the powers of the budget section of the legislative council; to amend and reenact sections 15-10-12.1, 38-08-04.2, 54-10-01.1, 54-16-01, 54-16-04, 54-16-09, 54-16-11, 54-27-10, and 54-27-23, and subsection 7 of section 55-08-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the authority of the emergency commission to authorize transfers of funds; to repeal sections 54-16-03, 54-16-04.1, 54-16-05, 54-16-10, 54-16-11.1, and 54-16-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the authority of the emergency commission to authorize transfers of funds; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

Rep. Moore introduced:

HB 1563: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 57-02-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of real property as applied to property of oil refineries for purposes of taxation; and to provide an effective date.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Finance and Taxation.

Rep. Murphy introduced:

HB 1564: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 29-10.2-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to expansion of the statewide grand jury jurisdiction to investigate civil fraud or deception.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Reps. Retzer, Haugland, Graba and Sens. Redlin, Wenstrom introduced:

HB 1565: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 65-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to annual adjustment of workmen's compensation benefits; to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 65-05-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to workmen's compensation death benefits; to repeal chapter 65-05.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to supplementary workmen's compensation benefits; and to provide for retroactive effect of this Act.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Industry, Business and Labor.

Rep. Lindgren and Sen. Holmberg introduced:

HB 1566: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 11-03-08, 11-08-06, 11-08-08, 11-08-13, 11-10-02, 11-10-06, 11-15-22, 11-15-28, 11-16-15, 11-19-04, 11-19-05, 11-19-13,

11-19.1-08, 11-28-10, 18-02-09, 19-01-13, 20.1-01-04, 20.1-02-14, 23-07.1-05, 23-15-04, 23-15-05, 27-07.1-16, 29-02-08, 29-05-23, 29-05-26, 32-22-29, 36-01-18, 40-20-06, 44-04-06, 44-08-09, 44-11-12, 53-03-06, 55-08-04.1, and 55-08-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the office of county constable; and to repeal sections 11-09-26 and 11-15-27 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to county constables.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Political Subdivisions**.

Reps. Murphy, Thompson, O'Connell introduced:

HB 1567: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 38-11.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the liability of mineral developers for waste.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources**.

Reps. Dalrymple, Kelly introduced:

HB 1568: A BILL for an Act to establish a charitable gambling study commission, to provide for the appointment of members to the commission, and to provide for a study of the policies of charitable gambling organizations; to make an appropriation; and to provide an expiration date.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary**.

Reps. Keller, Murphy, O. Hanson introduced:

HB 1569: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 38-16 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the reclamation of lands affected by certain gravel, sand, and other types of surface mining operations; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources**.

Reps. R. Pederson, O'Connell, V. Olson and Sen. Mutch introduced:

HB 1570: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 39-10-43 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to duty to stop at railroad grade crossings.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Transportation**.

Reps. Hedstrom, Dorso introduced:

HB 1571: A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 12.1-10-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the offense of obstruction of judicial process; to amend and reenact sections 28-26-31 and 47-19.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to filing of frivolous lawsuits, awards of attorneys' fees, slander of title, and soliciting obstruction of judicial proceedings; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary**.

Rep. Mertens introduced:

HB 1572: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 29-26-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the collection and disposition of court costs and the assessment of a criminal justice training expense.
Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Rep. Hamerlik introduced:

HB 1573: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 43-15-35 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to permits to operate a pharmacy in a skilled nursing facility.
Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs.

Reps. Goetz, Martinson, Hoffner and Sens. W. Meyer, Wright, Moore introduced:

HB 1574: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 57-60-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the annual tax for the privilege of producing products from each coal conversion facility which commences construction after July 1, 1985.
Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Finance and Taxation.

Rep. Martinson introduced:

HB 1575: A BILL for an Act to place Bismarck junior college under the jurisdiction of the university of North Dakota; and to amend and reenact section 15-10-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to institutions administered by the state board of higher education.
Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

Rep. Hoffner introduced:

HB 1576: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 39-03-08.1, 39-03-08.2, and 54-44.4-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to public bids for state purchasing contracts.
Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

Reps. Brokaw, Shockman, O'Connell, Skjerven, Klundt introduced:

HB 1577: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-41 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to training in cardiopulmonary resuscitation for high school students.
Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Education.

Reps. DeMers, Kingsbury, Dalrymple and Sens. Stenehjem, Redlin, Lashkowitz introduced:

HB 1578: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 26.1-17-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to health service corporation board of director membership.
Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs.

Reps. Frey, Oban, Haugland and Sens. Shea, Stromme introduced:
HB 1579: A BILL for an Act to provide disclosure requirements for employers manufacturing or using toxic or hazardous substances in a workplace, administration by the workmen's compensation bureau, state inspections, and rights of employees and the public; and to provide a penalty.
 Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor.**

Rep. Kloubec introduced:
HB 1580: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 61-24.3-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to authorization of the southwest pipeline project.
 Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources.**

Rep. Larson introduced:
HB 1581: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 28 of section 12.1-30-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to businesses allowed to operate on Sunday.
 Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor.**

Rep. Dotzenrod introduced:
HB 1582: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 60-02-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to warehouse storage rates for dry edible beans.
 Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture.**

Rep. Kuchera and Sen. Stenehjem introduced:
HB 1583: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to construct and equip a housing office building at the university of North Dakota.
 Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Appropriations.**

Rep. Kuchera introduced:
HB 1584: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 15-59-01, sections 15-59-02.1, 15-59-04, 15-59-05.2, 15-59-06, 15-59-07, 25-01.2-01, 25-01.2-03, 25-01.2-04, 25-01.2-05, 25-01.2-06, 25-01.2-07, 25-01.2-08, 25-01.2-09, 25-01.2-11, 25-01.2-12, 25-01.2-16, and 25-01.2-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to special education of exceptional children and to rights of developmentally disabled persons; and to repeal sections 25-01.2-02, 25-01.2-13, 25-01.2-14, and 25-01.2-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to services and enforcement of rights of developmentally disabled persons.
 Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Education.**

Rep. Kuchera introduced:

HB 1585: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 12.1-23-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to defrauding secured creditors.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Rep. Wentz and Sen. Wenstrom introduced:

HB 1586: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 27-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the appointment of judicial referees; to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 14-02.1-03.1, subsection 3 of section 27-20-05, and section 27-20-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to juvenile court referees; and to repeal section 27-20-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to juvenile court referees.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Reps. Dalrymple, A. Olson and Sen. Heinrich introduced:

HB 1587: A BILL for an Act to set safety standards for anhydrous ammonia facilities; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

Rep. Koland and Sen. Kilander introduced:

HB 1588: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 27-08.1-01 and 27-08.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the jurisdictional limits of small claims courts.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Rep. A. Olson introduced:

HB 1589: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 57-43.1 and a new section to chapter 57-43.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to fuel tax in the event of withholding of federal highway funds; to amend and reenact sections 39-09-02, 57-43.1-02, and 57-43.2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to motor vehicle speed limits and fuel tax in the event of withholding of federal highway funds resulting from change in motor vehicle speed limits; and to require the attorney general to take legal action to recover withheld federal highway funds.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Rep. Sauter introduced:

HB 1590: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 19-18-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to economic poisons; to amend and reenact sections 19-01-03, 19-01-04, 19-01-05, 19-01-07, 19-01-12, 19-01-14, 19-01-18, 19-02-16, 19-02-17, 19-02-20, 19-02.1-01, 19-02.1-04, 19-02.1-05, 19-02.1-06, 19-02.1-16, 19-02.1-21, subsection 5 of section 19-03.1-09, subsection 2 of section 19-03.1-13, section 19-03.1-16, subsection 1 of section 19-03.1-18, subdivision b of subsection 1 of section

19-03.1-24, sections 19-03.1-30, 19-03.1-32, subdivision a of subsection 1 of section 19-03.1-33, subsection 3 of section 19-03.1-35, paragraph 4 of subdivision e of subsection 1 of section 19-03.1-36, subsections 2 and 3 of section 19-03.1-37, sections 19-04-01, 19-07-01, 19-08-01, 19-08-04, 19-10-21, subsection 2 of section 19-13.1-03, sections 19-13.1-09, 19-13.1-11, 19-13.1-12, 19-14-03, 19-14-06, 19-14-08, 19-16.1-03, 19-17-02, 19-17-03, 19-17-04, subsection 8 of section 19-18-02, section 19-18-03, subsection 2 of section 19-18-04, sections 19-18-05, 19-18-06, 19-18-06.1, subsection 1 of section 19-18-07, sections 19-20.1-02, 19-20.1-03, 19-20.1-06, 19-20.1-08, 19-20.1-10, 19-20.1-11, 19-20.1-12, 19-20.1-13, 19-20.1-14, 19-20.1-15, 19-20.1-16, 19-20.1-17, subsection 5 of section 19-21-02, and section 19-21-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the state laboratories department; and to repeal section 19-17-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to weights of containers.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on State and Federal Government**.

Rep. Linderman introduced:

HB 1591: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 60-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to posting signs in warehouses designating commodity groups and providing refund information.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture**.

Reps. Gullickson, Keller, Vander Vorst and Sen. W. Meyer introduced:

HB 1592: A BILL for an Act to create and enact three new sections to chapter 43-35 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the certification of water well pump and pitless unit installers; to amend and reenact sections 43-35-11, 43-35-12, 43-35-13, 43-35-14, 43-35-16, 43-35-20, 43-35-21, and 43-35-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the certification of water well pump and pitless unit installers; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources**.

Reps. Ulmer, Lloyd and Sen. Heinrich introduced:

HB 1593: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 52-06-04 and section 52-06-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to unemployment compensation weekly benefit amount, and benefit duration.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor**.

Reps. Belter, Melby and Sen. Redlin introduced:

HB 1594: A BILL for an Act to create and enact seven new sections to chapter 61-16 of the North Dakota Century Code,

relating to the election of water resource district managers; and to amend and reenact sections 61-16-07, 61-16-08, and 61-16-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to water resource district board managers.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources**.

Reps. A. Williams, Dotzenrod, Shide introduced:

HB 1595: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 41-09-39 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the notice of an assignment which must given an account debtor.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor**.

Reps. A. Williams, R. Solberg, Schindler and Sens. Freborg, Moore, Dotzenrod introduced:

HB 1596: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 35-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to limitations on crop liens; and to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 41-09-17 and subsection 2 of section 41-09-42 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to after-acquired property and the duration of financing statement filings.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture**.

Reps. D. Olsen, Halmrast, Rydell, J. Peterson, Wold introduced:

HB 1597: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 53-06.1-12.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the allocation of games of chance tax.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Finance and Taxation**.

Reps. Cleveland, G. Berg and Sens. Stenehjem, Stromme introduced:

HB 1598: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 20.1-03-07.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to nonresident waterfowl hunting zones.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources**.

Rep. Vander Vorst introduced:

HB 1599: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 15-40.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the foundation aid equalization deduction for school districts; and to provide a retroactive effective date.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Education**.

Rep. Schmidt introduced:

HB 1600: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 57-02-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, to provide that minerals are exempt from ad valorem property taxes; and to provide an effective date.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Finance and Taxation**.

Rep. Nalewaja and Sen. D. Meyer introduced:

HB 1601: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 15-38-17, 20.1-02-23, 55-01-01, and 55-08-02.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the addition of an Indian representative to the teachers' professional practices commission, the game and fish advisory board, the state historical board, and the outdoor recreation interagency council.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on State and Federal Government**.

Rep. Schneider introduced:

HB 1602: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 57-02-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of "agricultural property" for purposes of general property assessment; and to provide an effective date.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Finance and Taxation**.

Rep. Dalrymple introduced:

HB 1603: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 4-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the liability of the state seed commission, seed department, commissioner, and certified or noncertified agricultural seed producers.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture**.

Reps. Klundt, Lloyd and Sen. Langley introduced:

HB 1604: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 35-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to limitations on crop mortgages; and to amend and reenact subsection 8 of section 28-22-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to exceptions from process, levy, or sale.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture**.

Reps. Klundt, Hill introduced:

HB 1605: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a teachers' tuition waiver program.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Education**.

Reps. Gunsch, R. Hausauer introduced:

HB 1606: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 20.1-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the governor's proclamation for a season for underwater spearfishing.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources**.

Reps. Klundt, Skjerven and Sen. Langley introduced:

HB 1607: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 41-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the privilege of setoff between accounts at financial institutions.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Industry, Business and Labor.

Rep. Laughlin and Sen. Olson introduced:

HB 1608: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subdivision to subsection 18 of section 52-01-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to optional exclusion from unemployment compensation coverage.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Industry, Business and Labor.

Rep. Wold introduced:

HB 1609: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 14-05-24 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to distribution of property, child support, and spousal support within divorce proceedings.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs.

Rep. Ulmer introduced:

HB 1610: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 11-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to requiring the filing of a plat depicting any change in the existing boundaries of real property resulting from a court action or arbitration proceeding.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Reps. Starke, Klundt and Sen. Langley introduced:

HB 1611: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the profits of the Bank of North Dakota and the state mill and elevator association.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

Rep. Lipsiea introduced:

HB 1612: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 35-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the prepayment of real estate mortgage loans; and to amend and reenact section 7-04-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the repayment of loans.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Industry, Business and Labor.

Rep. Wentz and Sen. Olson introduced:

HB 1613: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 10-04-06 of the North Dakota Century Code,

relating to security transactions exempt from registration requirements.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor**.

Reps. Lautenschlager, J. Peterson and Sens. Redlin, Reiten introduced:

HB 1614: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 15-28-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to certain school board elections and terms of office for school board members; and to amend and reenact section 15-28-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to certain school board elections and terms of office for school board members.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Education**.

Rep. Shaw introduced:

HB 1615: A BILL for an Act to prohibit the distribution of indecent material by means of cable television; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary**.

Reps. Oban, W. Williams, Hoffner and Sens. Maixner, Kelsh introduced:

HB 1616: A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new sections to chapter 8-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to telephone solicitations or advertisements; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor**.

Reps. Goetz, V. Olson introduced:

HB 1617: A BILL for an Act to provide for an executive compensation commission.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on State and Federal Government**.

Reps. Sauter, Tollefson introduced:

HB 1618: A BILL for an Act to provide for county spouse abuse programs; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Political Subdivisions**.

Rep. Shaw introduced:

HB 1619: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 57-28-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the rate of interest on land purchased at the annual county sale of land acquired by tax deed.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Political Subdivisions**.

Reps. Hill, Schindler, Rydell and Sen. Peterson introduced:

HB 1620: A BILL for an Act to require the teachers' professional practices commission to conduct a study of the needs of

first-year teachers in this state; and to provide an appropriation.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Education**.

Reps. Starke, Nowatzki, Vander Vorst and Sens. Wright, Bakewell introduced:

HB 1621: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 4-22-51 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to soil conservation trust lands.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture**.

Reps. Brokaw, Watne, A. Williams introduced:

HB 1622: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 47-18-04 and 47-18-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to homestead property.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Finance and Taxation**.

Reps. Lloyd, Stofferahn introduced:

HB 1623: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 13 of section 20.1-02-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the issuance of resident deer hunting licenses for members of the United States armed forces.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources**.

Rep. R. Solberg introduced:

HB 1624: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 23-11-29 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to tax exemptions and payments in lieu of taxes for housing authorities.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Finance and Taxation**.

Reps. Hill, Schindler, Rydell and Sen. Peterson introduced:

HB 1625: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 15-38-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the duties of the teachers' professional practices commission.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Education**.

Reps. Melby, Hedstrom and Sen. Christensen introduced:

HB 1626: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 15-34.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to compulsory school attendance and providing exceptions for home school instruction.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Education**.

Reps. Stofferahn, Kent, Hedstrom and Sens. Stenehjem, Krauter introduced:

HB 1627: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 49-22-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the deposit of fees charged by the public service commission under the

Energy Conversion and Transmission Facility Siting Act; and to provide an appropriation.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources**.

Rep. O. Hanson and Sen. Thane introduced:

HB 1628: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subdivision to subsection 15 of section 57-02-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a property tax exemption for grain storage condominium units; and to provide an effective date.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Finance and Taxation**.

Rep. Retzer introduced:

HB 1629: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-16 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of an emergency for the transfer of emergency funds by the emergency commission to the attorney general.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Appropriations**.

Reps. Brokaw, Shockman, A. Williams, Watne introduced:

HB 1630: A BILL for an Act relating to property used for farming purposes and providing for relief in certain cases from foreclosure of mortgages, termination of contracts for the conveyance of real estate, and execution sales of real property; to provide relief in certain cases from claim and delivery, seizure, or foreclosure of personal property; to extend the period of redemption of real property during an emergency; to provide an expiration date; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture**.

Reps. Laughlin, Kretschmar and Sen. Waldera introduced:

HB 1631: A BILL for an Act to create and enact chapter 16.1-08.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to campaign finance limitation; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary**.

Reps. Whalen, R. Hausauer and Sen. D. Meyer introduced:

HB 1632: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 5 of section 39-04-19, relating to registration fees of farm vehicles.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture**.

Rep. Eckroth introduced:

HB 1633: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 18-01-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the duties of the fire marshal and providing for a statement of legislative intent.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

Rep. Eckroth introduced:

HB 1634: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 12-60-05, 12-60-10, 12-60-17, and subsection 14 of section 54-12-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the appointment and duties of the superintendent of the bureau of criminal investigation.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

Rep. Schmidt introduced:

HB 1635: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 61-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, to prohibit the use of mineral exploration wells as water wells; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Natural Resources.

Reps. Meyer, Riehl introduced:

HB 1636: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 10-06-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to divestiture of farmland or ranchland.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

Reps. Schneider, G. Berg introduced:

HB 1637: A BILL for an Act to provide for the creation and operation of the North Dakota legal services corporation; to provide a penalty; and to provide an appropriation.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

Rep. A. Hausauer introduced:

HB 1638: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 57-61-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a coal severance tax credit for coal mine owners or operators.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Finance and Taxation.

Reps. Strinden, Mertens and Sens. Nething, Heigaard introduced:

HB 1639: A BILL for an Act to provide a statement of legislative intent relating to wetlands; to provide for a conditional property tax exemption for wetlands, for payment to counties by the state of the amount of tax exempted, and an authorization for receipt of funds; to amend and reenact section 3 of House Bill No. 1232 as approved by the forty-ninth legislative assembly, providing an effective date for a nongame wildlife fund; to amend and reenact sections 61-16.1-41, 61-31-01, and 61-31-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to drainage permits, declaration of legislative intent concerning wetlands, and

receipt of funds for the waterbank program; to provide a standing and continuing appropriation; and to provide an effective date.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources**.

Reps. Lang, Thompson, Schindler introduced:

HB 1640: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 4-12.2-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to establishment of pollination locations.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture**.

Rep. Melby introduced:

HB 1641: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 53-06.1-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to allowable expenses of the charitable gaming trust fund account.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary**.

Rep. Wentz, Kretschmar introduced:

HB 1642: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 6 of section 27-20-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the findings and recommendations of juvenile court referees.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary**.

Reps. DeMers, Sauter, Graba and Sens. Shea, Ingstad introduced:

HB 1643: A BILL for an Act to provide that state employees receive payroll checks on a semimonthly basis; to amend and reenact section 27-06-02, subsection 2 of section 27-20-05, sections 54-23-42, 54-23-43, 54-52-06, 54-52-06.1, and 54-52.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the payment of salaries and retirement contributions.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on State and Federal Government**.

FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

SB 2073: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 65-04-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to release of payroll information from employers.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor**.

SB 2077: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 26-17.1-16 or in the alternative section 26.1-26-32 as created by Senate Bill No. 2078 as approved by the forty-ninth legislative assembly, and section 26.1-01-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to fees charged by the commissioner of insurance.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor**.

- SB 2111: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 63-05-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to penalties for failure to cut weeds and grasses.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture**.
- SB 2143: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 5 and 8 of section 16.1-11-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to voting instructions placed on a ballot and a voting space on a ballot for marking the choice of candidates.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary**.
- SB 2145: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 16.1-11-14 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to application to place a name on the ballot in the primary election.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary**.
- SB 2192: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 54-17-07.4 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the restriction that requires housing finance agency bonds to be sold at not less than ninety-five percent of par; and to declare an emergency.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on State and Federal Government**.
- SB 2204: A BILL for an Act to provide for a program of preadmission assessment of the health and social needs for all prospective residents of skilled nursing facilities, intermediate care facilities, or hospital swing-bed facilities who are, or within one hundred eighty days of admission may become, eligible for medical assistance program benefits.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs**.
- SB 2210: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 19-16.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to registration of antifreeze; and to provide a penalty.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on State and Federal Government**.
- SB 2215: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subdivision 1 of subsection 1 of section 28-32-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to exempting the North Dakota housing finance agency from the provisions of the Administrative Practices Act; and to declare an emergency.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on State and Federal Government**.
- SB 2223: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 39-24-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to required protective headgear for certain

operators of snowmobiles; to amend and reenact subsection 9 of section 39-24-01, subsection 5 of section 39-24-09, and section 39-24-09.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition and operation of snowmobiles.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Transportation**.

SB 2224: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 21-02-02, 21-02-05, 21-02-07, 21-02-08, 21-02-09, 21-02-10, 21-02-11 and 21-02-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the issuance and recording of certificates of indebtedness by taxing districts; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Political Subdivisions**.

SB 2230: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, authorizing the execution of instruments affecting interests in real property by personnel of the North Dakota housing finance agency; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on State and Federal Government**.

SB 2242: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subdivision r of subsection l of section 38-14.1-14 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to permit applications for surface mining and reclamation operations.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources**.

SB 2254: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subdivision to subsection l of section 38-14.1-14 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to surface coal mining and reclamation permit application requirements for cultural resources; to amend and reenact section 38-14.1-10, subdivision q of subsection l of section 38-14.1-14, subsection 4 of section 38-14.1-21, subsection l of section 38-14.1-30, and section 55-03-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the necessity of a permit, administrative review, permit for investigation, evaluation, or mitigation of adverse effects on cultural resources, permit application requirements for topographic maps, and to permit approval or denial standards.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Natural Resources**.

SB 2261: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 15-47-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to bidding requirements for school contracts.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Education**.

SB 2270: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 57-19-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the

MONDAY, JANUARY 28, 1985

457

disposition of investment income from school district special reserve funds.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Education**.

SB 2294: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 12 of section 57-02-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of residential property.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Finance and Taxation**.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Strinden's motion.

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk